
ISLE OF MAN POST OFFICES.
compiled by Ken Smith

(updated 28/10/2020)
Abbeylands 1899: rubber: DOUGLAS.  Closed May 1941.
Baldrine Nov.1897: LAXEY.  Rubber 1897.  By 1914 DOUGLAS.  1935 POST TOWN.  

1974 DOUGLAS (IM4 6DU).  Closed (by) 9-10-2008 (resignation). 
Baldwin 1882: DOUGLAS.  Rubber 1899.  Closed Feb.1946.  
Ballabeg 1863: DOUGLAS.  By 1/1877 S.O. Rubber 1899.  1878 DOUGLAS.  1/1886 S.O.  

By 1914 DOUGLAS.  1935 POST TOWN.  1955 CASTLETOWN. Closed 13-4-2006.  
Ballafesson 1907: rubber: TSO of  PORT ERIN.  Closed Dec.1973.
Ballasalla 1848: UDC: DOUGLAS.  By 1/1877 S.O.  By 4/1880 DOUGLAS.  1/1886  S.O.

MO-SB 1-4-1878.  T.O.1-7-1885(BAP). By 1914 DOUGLAS.  1935 POST TOWN.  Closed 28-3-2020.
Ballaugh   29-5-1845: UDC: DOUGLAS. M.O.1-10-1862.  S.B.2-3-1863. T.O.1870s(BAR). By 1/1877 S.O. 

By 4/1880 DOUGLAS.  1/1886 S.O.  By 1914 DOUGLAS.  1935 POST TOWN (IM7 5EG)
CASTLETOWN Sept.1832: DOUGLAS.  No.037 issued 1854: M.O.Office.  T.O.1871(CDE).  By 1870 S.O. 

By 4/1880 DOUGLAS.  1/1886 S.O.  By 1914 DOUGLAS.  1935 POST TOWN (IM9 1LJ)
--Derbyhaven 1896: rubber issued: rural>TSO by 1946.  Closed 31-8-1974.
Colby 1858: UDC: DOUGLAS.  Replaced by wall box, c.4/1863. (not in POGuides 1859-74 at least).  By 1/1877 S.O.  

1878 DOUGLAS.  1/1886 S.O.  Rubber 1893.  T.O.20-7-1909(ZOY).  By 1914 DOUGLAS.  S.B.5-4-1933.  
1935 POST TOWN(&1954).  By 1961 CASTLETOWN.  Closed 30-7-1999.

Crosby May 1854: UDC: DOUGLAS.  By 1870 S.O.  1878 DOUGLAS.  1/1886 S.O.  T.O.31-5-1898(ZBY).
MO-SB by 1908.  By 1914 DOUGLAS.  1935 POST TOWN.  Closed 24-9-2010 (retirement).

DOUGLAS 1766: WHITEHAVEN,Cumb.  Aug.1822 M.O.& POST TOWN. Postmarks 'Isle of Man' until 1839.
Str.line marks from 1826.  UDC 1829.  CDS 1839.  No.407 allocated 1844.  S.B.16-9-1861.  
T.O.1871(IM)(DGI 4-10-1887).    B.O closed 13-8-2016.  Office now at Strand Street.

--Anagh Coar 2-4-1990  (2007, Cushag Rd.,IM2 2BZ)
--Athol Street 1-10-1887: MO-SB.  T.O.4-10-1887(DAS). Replaced by 'Prospect Hill' 1-6-1895.
--Brunswick Rd   1-7-1898: MO-SB. Closed 1916 (poc.9/5/1916). Re-open 1920 (poc.2/3/1920).  Closed 29-4-2006.
--Bucks Road 1-4-1884: MO-SB.  T.O.by 1887(IMB)(DBS 4-10-1887).  Closed 1966.
--Crosby Terrace by 1941.  Closed 31-8-2018 (retirement).
--Derby Road 1933 (poc.5/4/1933) S.B.  Closed 30-9-1965 (replaced by 'Woodbourne Rd')
--Duke Street Jan.1857.  UDCs issued 12-2-1857 & 11-4-1859.  MO-SB 1-3-1880.  Replaced by 'Strand St' 1-6-1882.
--Falcon Street 1887: rubber issued (& rubber 1895).  Closed 1897.
--Governor's Hill 16-4-1998 (IM2 7EA)
--Holiday Camp 1946 'Douglas Holiday Camp' (May-Sept).  1964,d/r 'IOM Holiday Centre'.  Closed 1966.
--Kirk Onchan Jan.1855: DOUGLAS.. UDC issued 18-12-1854.  By 1870 S.O.  1878 DOUGLAS.  MO-SB 2-10-1882.  

1/1886 S.O.  1-8-1895 DOUGLAS.  T.O.11-7-1893(KOC). Rural>TSO Apr.1922.  (IM3 1AP)
--Laureston Terrace  2-9-1901:MO-SB.   Closed 1912/14.
--Market Place 1-4-1884: MO-SB.  Closed 1912.
--P.O.H.Q. Public counter opened 7-5-1996: Circular Road.  Closed 31-12-2004 (sorting office remians open)
--Prospect Hill 1-6-1895 (ex 'Athol St') MO-SB & T.O.(DAS). Closed 1909 (poc.16/11/1909).

Re-ested. by 1/1928 (ex 'Victoria St').  Closed 26-9-1984.
--Pulrose 1-4-1930  (IM2 1AS).  Closed 20-3-2019 (retirement).
--Royal Avenue 1911: rubber.  T.O.1-5-1935(DVJ). S.B.1-5-1935. M.O.2-6-1937 (2007: IM3 1EB) (Port Jack Stores)
--St.Ninian's 1932 (poc.13/1/1932) non MO-SB.  Closed March 1936.
--Saddlestone 2-9-1996   (4, Ballaughton Lane, IM2 1NB)  Closed 2-2-2013.
--Shore Road 1857: UDC issued.  M.O.1-7-1865.   Closed 1866.  M.O.re-estd.1-7-1868.  S.B.1-10-1868.  

              T.O.1870s(IAY)(DSR 4-10-1887).  Closed 1915 (poc.7/12/1915)
--South Quay by 1/1885.  Rubber 1886.  T.O.19-7-1887(ISQ)(DSQ 4-10-1887).   Closed 1913.
--Station 1-6-1889: MO-SB & T.O.(DST).  Closed April 1940.
--Strand Street 1-6-1882: MO-SB (ex 'Duke St').  Closed Nov.1886 (from 14-8-2016 'DOUGLAS' post office in Strand St).
--The Crescent Sept.1850.  UDC 'Crescent' 9-1-1851.  MO-SB 1-8-1882.  T.O.5-5-1885(IAZ)(DCC 4-10-1887).  

Closed 27-9-1989.     
--The Esplanade 1928 (poc.6/6/1928) MO-SB.  Closed 1933 (poc.4/10/1933)
--The Palace June 1907: T.O.(DPC) (seasonal, 1 June to 30 Sept). MO-SB by 1914.  Closed 1915.
--The Quay 1874: cds issued 15-7-1874.  Only ref.so far.
--Victoria Pier B.O.   1908: T.O.(May-Sept.annually.  Closed 1916 (amendments, 1/1917)
--Victoria Street (1) 10-9-1884: cds issued.  Listed Dec.1884.  No further ref. until entry below.
--Victoria Street (2) 1907: MO-SB.  T.O.16-11-1909(DVS).  Closed 1921 (replaced by 'Prospect Hill').
--Villa Marina B.O. 1936 (poc.5/8/1936) MO-SB & T.O.(DSA) (seasonal, 1 June to 15 Sept.).  Closed Sept.1989. 
--Willaston July 1954 
--Windsor Road 14-4-1975 (ex 'Woodbourne Rd') (2 skeletons in use Apr.-Dec.1975). 



--Woodbourne Rd.       Oct.1965 (ex 'Derby Rd').  Replaced by 'Windsor Rd' 14-4-1975.
--Woodburn Rd. 12-2-1857: UDC issued.  Closed in or after 1857.
--York Road Nov.1912: MO-SB (cds issued 24-10-1912).  T.O.by 1929.   Closed 1941.

Four Roads --see TSO of  PORT ST.MARY--
Foxdale 21-10-1858: UDC: DOUGLAS.  By 1877 S.O.   1878 DOUGLAS.  MO-SB 1-10-1884.

T.O.26-10-1886(FXD). 1/1886 S.O. By 1/1894 ST.JOHN'S S.O 
By 1914 DOUGLAS.  1935 ST.JOHN'S.    (by 2007, Service Station, IM4 3EF)

Glen Auldyn 1930: rubber: RAMSEY: TSO.  Closed Feb.1944.
Glenmoy    21-10-1858: UDC: DOUGLAS.  By 1/1877 S.O.  1878 DOUGLAS.  1/1886 S.O.

1886: rubber 'Glennoy/St.John's' (spelling error).  By 4/1892 PEEL S.O.  Renamed 'Glenmaye' 1896.
Glenmaye 1896: rubber: PEEL.  Closed 22-5-2002.
Jurby 1857: DOUGLAS.  By 1/1877 S.O.  1878 DOUGLAS.  1/1886 S.O.

By 7/1892 SULBY S.O. Rubber 1899.  Replaced by 'Sandygate' Sept.1909.   
Re-estd.1-8-1983 (IM7 3BJ)

Jurby RAF P.O. 16-11-1943.  Closed 178-10-1947.  Re-estd.June 1951.  Closed 2-11-1963.
Kirk Andreas 1855: UDC: DOUGLAS.  MO-SB 1-8-1874. By 1/1877 S.O.  By 4/1880 DOUGLAS.

1884 RAMSEY.  1/1886 S.O.  By 7/1892 RAMSEY. By 1914 DOUGLAS.  1935 RAMSEY.
Closed 30-6-1973.  Re-open 13-9-1976.  (IM7 4HE)

Kirk Bride 1858: UDC: DOUGLAS.  By 1/1877 S.O.  By 4/1880 DOUGLAS.  1884 RAMSEY.  
1/1886 S.O.  By 7/1892 RAMSEY.  Rubber 1899.  By 1914 DOUGLAS.  1935 RAMSEY.
(tc.2-12-1987: re-open  ).  Closed 17-4-1990.  Re-open 26-6-1990 (Church Hall for a short time).
 (& ‘reopen’ 2-7-1998)  (by 2007, IM7 4AT)('The Green Parrot').  Closed by March 2013.

Kirk Maughold 21-10-1858: UDC issued: no appointment made: not in POGuides 1859-1875.
1875 'Maughold' DOUGLAS.  ('Kirk' added by 1/1878). 1/1886 S.O. By 1/1894 RAMSEY.  

                             Rubber 1898.  By 1914 DOUGLAS.  Rubber in use 1935.  1935 RAMSEY.  Closed 4-6-2010.
Kirk Michael 29-5-1845: UDC: DOUGLAS.  By 1/1877 S.O.  MO-SB 1-2-1879.  By 4/1880 DOUGLAS.  

1884 RAMSEY.  1/1886 S.O. T.O.15-2-1887(KMC). By 1914 DOUGLAS. 
1935 POST TOWN (IM6 1AB)

Kirk Onchan --see TSO of  DOUGLAS--
Knockaloe Camp 29-7-1908 to 6-8-1908: PEEL: skeleton in use: temporary office.
Knockaloe, The Camp 23-7-1915: d/r issued: POW Camp.  CDS in use to 28-4-1919 at least.  Closed by 16/5/1919.
Laxey Oct.1853: UDC: DOUGLAS.  M.O.1-7-1861.  S.B.10-3-1862.  T.O.1870s(LBA).  By 1870 SO. 

1878 DOUGLAS.  1/1886 S.O.  By 1914 DOUGLAS.  1935 POST TOWN.  (IM4 7BD)
--Old Laxey 1905: rubber: LAXEY S.O.  Closed 31-3-1993.
Lower Foxdale 1897: ST.JOHN'S S.O.  Rubber 1899.  By 1914 DOUGLAS.  1935 ST.JOHN'S.  Closed 7-10-1978.
North Ramsey --see TSO of  RAMSEY--
PEEL (or 'Peel Town') Sept.1832: DOUGLAS.  UDC 1849. M.O.1851 ('Peel Town' to 1855).  S.B.1861. T.O.1871(PBA).  

By 1870 S.O.  By 4/1880 DOUGLAS.  1/1886 S.O.  By 1914 DOUGLAS.  
No.D51 issued 1881.  1935 POST TOWN.  (IM5 1BA)

Peel Camp 31-5-1908 to 12-6-1908: skeleton in use: temporary office.
PORT ERIN 21-10-1858: UDC: DOUGLAS. T.O.by 1885(PET). By 1/1870 CASTLETOWN S.O.  By 1877 S.O

1878 DOUGLAS. MO-SB 1-2-1884.  1/1886 S.O.  By 1914: DOUGLAS.  1935 POST TOWN 
(IM9 6AQ)

--Ballafesson 1907: rubber: PORT ERIN.  Closed Dec.1973.
PORT ST.MARY    1852: UDC: DOUGLAS. M.O.1-7-1863.  S.B.28-12-1863.  T.O.1870s(PFG).

By 1870 CASTLETOWN S.O.  By 1/1877 S.O.  1878 DOUGLAS.  1/1886 S.O.  
By 1914 DOUGLAS.  1935 POST TOWN. (relocated 23-6-2011)  (IM9 5BF)

--Four Roads March 1904: rubber issued.  Rural>TSO Feb.1930.  Closed 30-7-1981.
Port Lewaigue 1913: RAMSEY.  Closed 1916.
Port Soderick by 1/1877: DOUGLAS.  1/1886 S.O.  Rubber 1899.   By 1914 DOUGLAS.  Closed 30-6-1979.
Quarter Bridge 1855: UDC: DOUGLAS.  Closed 1863 (last entry in POGuide)
RAMSEY Sept.1832: DOUGLAS.  No.036 issued 1854: M.O.  By 1/1870 S.O.  1878 DOUGLAS.  1/1886 S.O.

T.O.1871(RAX). By 1914 DOUGLAS.  1935 POST TOWN (Old Court House 25-7-2011).
--Glen Auldyn 1930: rubber issued.  Closed Feb.1944.
--North Ramsey 1887: rubber issued.  MO-SB 1-5-1896: discont.by 1903. (tc.28-3-1990: re-open 29-5-1990)

Closed  Nov.1999.
--Queen's Pier 1-12-1898: MO-SB (seasonal).  T.O.18-9-1910(RQP).  Closed 1913.
--Waterloo Road Rubber 1886.  Closed in or after 1886 (perhaps replaced by 'Queen's Pier')
Regaby Gate 1898: rubber: RAMSEY.  By 1914 DOUGLAS.  1935 RAMSEY.  Closed 31-5-1977.
St.Ann's 1857: UDC: DOUGLAS.  By 1/1877 S.O.  1878 DOUGLAS.  1/1886 S.O.  Rubber 1898.  (&1904).

Replaced by 'Santon' by 7/1908.
St.John's                      Oct.1853: UDC: DOUGLAS.  By 1877 S.O.  1878 DOUGLAS.  MO-SB 1-5-1879.  T.O.6-9-1887(SJI).  

              1/1886 S.O.  By 1914 DOUGLAS.  1935 POST TOWN.  Closed 30-12-2019.



St.Mark's 29-4-1857: UDC: DOUGLAS.  By 1/1877 S.O.  1878 DOUGLAS.  1/1886 S.O.
By 7/1892 BALLASALLA S.O.  Rubber 1897.  Closed 30-6-1978.

Sandygate Sept.1909: rubber: SULBY (ex 'Jurby').  By 1914 DOUGLAS.  1935 SULBY.
1955 RAMSEY.  Closed July 1968.

Santon by 7/1908: S.O.(ex 'St.Anns').  By 1914 DOUGLAS.  1935 POST TOWN. Closed 27-3-2002.
Sulby Oct.1853: UDC: DOUGLAS.  By 1/1877 S.O.  1878 DOUGLAS.  1884 RAMSEY.  Rubber 1887.  

1/1886 S.O.  T.O.21-6-1898(XAU).  By 1914 DOUGLAS. 1935 POST TOWN.  
1955 RAMSEY.  Closed 28-3-2020 (shop closed).

The Green 1855: UDC: DOUGLAS (10 miles).  Closed 1859/60 (not listed 1/1861)
Union Mills Oct.1853: UDC: DOUGLAS.  By 1870 S.O.  1878 DOUGLAS.  1/1886 S.O. Rubber 1890.  

MO-SB 1-8-1891:discont.by 1914.  T.O.21-4-1891(UNM). By 1914 DOUGLAS.  1935 POST TOWN.  
By 1946 DOUGLAS.  (IM4 4AD)

APPENDIX: temporary offices.

--Douglas Grandstand from early 1930s to 1973: TT.race days only: telegrams.
Also more recent openings as sales point for T.T.stamps (at T.T.races in early June).

--Rotary Conference 28 –30 April 1960
--T.U.C.Conference 7 – 11 Sept.1953.


